
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
SUB2015-00047

Shocker -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 47 5
INFORMATIONAL ITEM:

Informational Item -MAPC Memo2 9
VAC2016-00004

VAC2016 04 -MAPC STAFF RPT 14
VAC2016-00016

VAC2016 16 -MAPC STAFF RPT 19
VAC2016-00017

VAC2016 17 -MAPC STAFF RPT 23
ZON2015-00052 (Deferred from 2-4-16)

ZON2015-00052 Staff Report, Minutes and DAB Memo 26
ZON2016-00012 and CON2016-00007 (Deferred Indefinitely) -
See Attached Letter

ZON2016-000012 and CON2016-00007 Deferral Letter 48
CON2016-00009 and ZON2016-00008

ZON2016-00008 and CON2016-00009 Staff Report and
Site Plan 50

ZON2016-00018
ZON2016-00018 Staff Report 58

CUP2016-00015
CUP2016-00015 Staff Report and CUP Drawing 61

DER2016-00003 (The Final Draft Wichita, Parks, Recreation
and Open Space Plan Update 2016 has been sent U.S. Mail to
each Planning Commissioner under separate cover.)

DER2016-00003 Staff Memorandum 66

1



WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Thursday, May 19, 2016 
 
 
The regular meeting of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission will be 
held on Thursday, May 19, 2016, beginning at 1:30 PM in the Planning Department Conference Room 
City Hall - 10th Floor, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas. If you have any questions regarding the 
meeting or items on this agenda, please call the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area 
Planning Department at 316.268.4421. 

1. Approval of the prior MAPC meeting minutes: 
Meeting Date: No Minutes  

2. CONSIDERATION OF SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments. 
SUBDIVISION CASE DETAILS 
2-1. SUB2015-00047: Revised One-Step Final Plat – SHOCKER ADDITION, located 

north of 29th Street North, west of Arkansas.     

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: Kaw Valley Engineering  
Acreage: 2.48 
Total Lots: 9  

2-2. INFORMATIONAL ITEM: Amendment to Subdivision Regulations, Plats with 
Non-Contiguous Blocks.     

Committee Action: 5-0 TO RETAIN CURRENT POLICY 
    

3. PUBLIC HEARING – VACATION ITEMS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM   
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments.  
Complete legal descriptions are available for public inspection at the Metropolitan Area 
Planning Department – 10th Floor, City Hall, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas 

3-1. VAC2016-00004: City request to vacate a portion of the Minnesota public street 
right-of-way, located east of I-135 and north of 1st Street.    

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

3-2. VAC2016-00016: City request to vacate a portion of platted street right-of-way, 
generally located west of 119th Street West, on the north side of Kellogg Avenue and 
east of Hornecker Drive.    

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

3-3. VAC2016-00017: City request to vacate platted access control on property, located 
on the southwest side of 21st Street North and K-96.    

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

2



PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM  

4. Case No.: ZON2015-00052 (Deferred from 2-4-16)   
Request: City request for a zone change from SF-5 Single-family Residential and 

GC General Commercial to LI Limited Industrial.      
General Location: West of Greenwich Road, on the north side of I-35 and west side of Trig 

Street. 
Presenting Planner: Bill Longnecker 

5. Case No.: ZON2016-00012 and CON2016-00007 (Deferred Indefinitely) - See 
Attached Letter   

Request: City zone change from SF-5 Single-family Residential to TF3-Two-family 
Residential to allow ancillary parking (CON2016-00007), an amendment 
to PO-300 to allow a restaurant and a 10% reduction of the compatibility 
setback.  

General Location: West of Ridge Road, north of Maple Street. 
Presenting Planner: Bill Longnecker 

6. Case No.: CON2016-00009 and ZON2016-00008   
Request: City zone change request from B Multi-family Residential to LC Limited 

and City conditional use request for car sales.  
General Location: East of I-135, north of 1st Street, on the east side of Minnesota Street. 
Presenting Planner: Bill Longnecker 

7. Case No.: ZON2016-00018   
Request: City zone change request from SF-5 Single-family Residential to TF-3 

Two-family Residential.  
General Location: South of Central Avenue, west of I-235, east of Eisenhower Avenue on the 

south side of St. Louis Avenue (5801 W. St. Louis Ave.). 
Presenting Planner: Jess McNeely 

8. Case No.: CUP2016-00015   
Request: City request to create a commercial CUP Community Unit Plan on LC 

Limited Commercial zoned property.  
General Location: Southeast corner of Tyler Road and 29th Street North.  
Presenting Planner: Jess McNeely 

NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

9. Case No.: DER2016-00003 (The Final Draft Wichita, Parks, Recreation and Open 
Space Plan Update 2016 has been sent U.S. Mail to each Planning 
Commissioner under separate cover.)   

Request: Set Public Hearing Date for Adoption of the Wichita Parks, Recreation 
and Open Space Plan Update 2016 as an element of the Community 
Investments Plan 2015-2035.  

General Location: City and County wide 
Presenting Planner: Dave Barber 

3



 

10. Other Matters/Adjournment  

Dale Miller, Secretary 
Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 
 

4



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-1 
         May 19, 2016 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER:  SUB2015-00047 -- SHOCKER ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Chris Lee, 2102 East 21st Street, Wichita, KS 67214  
 
AGENT: Kaw Valley Engineering, Attn: Tim Austin, 200 North Emporia, 

Suite 100, Wichita, KS 67202  
 
LOCATION: North of West 29th Street North, West of North Arkansas Avenue 

(District VI)  
 
SITE SIZE:   2.48 acres  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  9 
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   9 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 7,000 square feet    
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Single-Family Residential (SF-5) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Two-Family Residential (TF-3) 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

  

5



SUB2015-00047 -- Plat of SHOCKER ADDITION  
May 19, 2016 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  This is an unplatted site located within the City of Wichita.  The site has been approved 
for a zone change (ZON2015-00009) from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to Two-Family 
Residential (TF-3).  A conditional use (CON2015-00008) was approved to allow multi-family 
residential density. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department requests the applicant extend water 

(distribution) to serve all lots and extend sewer (laterals) to serve all lots.  A utility plan is 
requested for water and sewer. 

 
B. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
C. City Stormwater Management has approved the concept plan.  
 
D. The drainage and utility easement needs revised to a “ street, sidewalk, drainage and utility 

easement” which is required adjoining a narrow 32-foot street right-of-way. 
 
E. The plattor’s text shall include language that the street, sidewalk, drainage and utility 

easement is hereby granted as indicated for street, sidewalk and drainage purposes and for 
the construction and maintenance of all public utilities. 

 
F. The plattor’s text references sewer easements not shown on the face of the plat.  
 
G. The applicant shall guarantee the paving of the proposed street.  For the narrow public 32-

foot street, this guarantee shall be for the 29-foot paving standard.   
 
H. The streets adjoining the plat (Mascot and Shelton) to the north shall be labelled. 
 
I. County Surveying requests a distance added on the north lines of Lots 5 and 6, Block 1. 
 
J. County Surveying requests a bearing added along the north line of Reserve A. 
 
K. County Surveying requests the addition of the delta for the curve with the 20-foot radius. 
 
L. County Surveying requests that in the legal description "except the south 30 feet for street 

right-of-way" needs removed and the 30-foot street dedication labelled.  
 
M. The owner's signature needs corrected to Christopher J. Lee. 
 
N. The notary under the owner's certificate needs corrected to "on behalf of the Company". 
 
O. Since this plat proposes the platting of narrow street right-of-way with adjacent 15-foot street, 

drainage and utility easements, a restrictive covenant shall be submitted which calls out 
restrictions for lot-owner use of these easements.  Retaining walls and change of grade shall 
be prohibited within these easements as well as fences, earth berms and mass plantings.  

 

6



SUB2015-00047 -- Plat of SHOCKER ADDITION  
May 19, 2016 - Page 3 
 
P. Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the proposed reserves.  The 

applicant shall either form a lot owners’ association prior to recording the plat or shall submit 
a restrictive covenant stating when the association will be formed, when the reserves will be 
deeded to the association and who is to own and maintain the reserves prior to the 
association taking over those responsibilities. 

 
Q. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 

for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

 
R. GIS has approved the street name.  
 
S. This property is within a zone identified by the City Engineer’s office as likely to have 

groundwater at some or all times within ten feet of the ground surface elevation.  Building 
with specially engineered foundations or with the lowest floor opening above groundwater is 
recommended and owners seeking building permits on this property will be similarly advised.  
More detailed information on recorded groundwater elevations in the vicinity of this property 
is available in the City Engineer’s office. 

 
   T. City Environmental Health Division advises that any wells installed on the property for 

irrigation purposes will have to be properly installed, permitted and inspected.  
 

  U. County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to 
tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 

 
  V. The Applicant is reminded that a platting binder is required with the final plat.  Approval of this 

plat will be subject to submittal of this binder and any relevant conditions found by such a 
review. 

 
  W. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
   X. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
  Y. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone: 316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
  Z. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 

7



SUB2015-00047 -- Plat of SHOCKER ADDITION  
May 19, 2016 - Page 4 
 

AA. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 
activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
BB. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 
CC.   The applicant should check City or County GIS mapping to determine whether the location of 

any taxing district boundaries (e.g. school districts) crosses their property and plan 
accordingly to avoid unnecessary splitting of lots between taxing districts. 

 
DD. Westar Energy has advised that no additional easements will be needed if the front lot 15-

foot drainage and utility easement is platted as that easement is needed to provide service.  
Heide Bryan, Subdivision Representative will be the contact for this plat. She can be reached 
at 316-261-6554.   Any and all relocation and removal of any existing equipment made 
necessary by this plat will be at the applicant’s expense. 

 
EE.  A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

 

8



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION   AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-2 
         May 19, 2016 
 
DATE:   May 19, 2016 
 
TO:   MAPC  
 
FROM:  Neil Strahl, Senior Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Subdivision Regulations – Plats with Non-Contiguous 

Blocks  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
At the Subdivision Committee of May 12, 2016, the Subdivision Committee reviewed the 
attached memo.  They voted 5-0 to retain the current policy on plats and not amend the 
Subdivision Regulations.  Plats with non-contiguous blocks would continue to be permitted.  
 

9



WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY      AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
DATE: May 12, 2016 
 
TO: Subdivision Committee  
 
FROM: Neil Strahl, Senior Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Subdivision Regulations – Plats with Non-Contiguous Blocks  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
At the Planning Commission Meeting of April 21, 2016, MAPD was directed by the Planning 
Commission to draft an amendment regarding subdivisions containing blocks which are not 
contiguous.   
 
Law Review 
 
County Law has reviewed the issue and Kansas Statutes regarding subdivisions does not 
include any provisions a) requiring blocks in a plat to be contiguous or b) imposing a maximum 
distance between blocks.  
  
Subdivision Regulations from other Cities/Counties 
 
Staff conducted a sampling of subdivision regulations in other localities and could not locate any 
subdivision codes which addressed plats with disconnected blocks.  
 
Frequency of Plats with Non-Contiguous Blocks 
 
At the 4/21/16 MAPC Meeting, MAPD Staff discussed four plats containing fragmented blocks: 
 
C & M Winter Addition – 375-foot separation  
Hedge Acres – 215 feet 
Cummings Estates – 1000 feet 
Hole-in-One Holstein – 1700 feet 
 
Staff involvement with such plats is not common and one local surveyor estimates these types 
of subdivisions are less than .1% (letter attached). The surveyor also states that these type of 
subdivisions has not caused any confusion and believes an amendment to the Subdivision 
Regulations would be unnecessary. 
 
City/County Staff 
 
No members of City or County staff expressed any issues that have developed with these types 
of disjointed plats.  The County Clerk’s Office also explained they have no issues with these 
plats.  
 
 
 
 

10



Memo – Plats with Non-Contiguous Block 
May 12, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
MAPD Recommendation 
 
There would appear to be several situations whereby a plat containing non-contiguous blocks 
may be justified (e.g. phased development, developable lots along perimeter of a non-
developable land, replat containing disparate sites, etc). If it is determined that an amendment is 
necessary, the following may be considered: 
  
“7-203. Blocks. (F) The property being developed shall include blocks that are encouraged to be 
contiguous and should not be separated unless they were originally part of the same parent 
tract, in which case the blocks shall not be separated by a distance greater than 5,280 feet.”  
 

11



12



13



  AGENDA ITEM NO.   3-1  
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION May19, 2016 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2016-00004 - Request to vacate public street right-of-way  
 
APPLICANT: Import Auto Center, Inc., Peter A & Sarah J Langenwalter Living Trust 

(applicants), Kaw Valley Engineering, co Tim Austin 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating the south approximately 236 feet of the North 

Minnesota public street right-of-way, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas  
 
LOCATION: Generally located east of North Interstate Highway I-135 and north of East 1st 

Street (WCC I) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Move cul-de-sac further north    
 
CURRENT ZONING: Abutting and adjacent properties are zoned LC Limited Commercial and B Multi-

Family Residential  
 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 

14



VAC2016-00004 – Request to vacate public street right-of-way dedicated by separate instrument 
May 19, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

The applicants are requesting the vacation of the south approximately 236 feet of the North Minnesota Street public 
right-of-way.  This portion of Minnesota Street does not intersect with East 1st Street at this location, but ends as a 
cul-de-sac north of 1st Street.  The applicants propose to rebuild the cul-de-sac, which means a portion of the proposed 
new cul-de-sac will be located on their northmost property, this will require the dedication of public street right-of-
way.  The applicant proposes the reconstructed cul-de-sac will be per Subdivision Standards.  There is a sidewalk 
located on the north end of the cul-de-sac that runs to 2nd Street.  There is a water line, water valve, stormwater line 
and stormwater inlets locate in the cul-de-sac and the length of Minnesota Street. Westar has no equipment in the 
area of the vacation and has no objection to this request, as condition # 7 will covers Westar. Becky Thompson is 
the Construction Services Representative for the Northeast area and can be contacted at 261-6320 for questions 
concerning Westar equipment.  The applicant currently has access/a drive onto Minnesota Street, located just above 
the radius of the cul-de-sac. Vacation of the right-of-way will not deny any properties access to public street right-
of-way and will not change traffic patterns.  
 
Minnesota Street was originally platted as part of the Minneapolis Addition, which was recorded June 9, 1886.  The 
west, abutting section of I-135 was constructed between 1971 and 1978.  The construction of I-135 required addition 
right-of-way and re-routed Minnesota Street.  An I-135 frontage road runs parallel to the west side of this portion of 
Minnesota.  The applicant is proposing an expansion of his auto repair business, which the vacation of Minnesota 
will facilitate.   
 
NOTE:  This case was deferred at the March 10, 2016, SD meeting.  The applicant requested the deferral so that 
VAC2016-00004 could be considered at the May 19, 2016, MAPC meeting, which is the same date as his request, 
for a zone change from B Multi-family Residential (B) to LC Limited Commercial (LC) and an associated 
Conditional Use for car sales on portions of the property; ZON2016-00008 and CON2016-00009.  The proposed 
vacated Minnesota right-of-way will used for car sales display.  
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from City Public Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the described public street right-of-way. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time February 25, 2016, which was at least 20 days prior to 
this public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described platted complete access 
control and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 
 

15



VAC2016-00004 – Request to vacate public street right-of-way dedicated by separate instrument 
May 19, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

(1) As approved by the Traffic Engineer, vacate the described public street right-of-way.  Provide Planning with 
a legal description of the vacated right-of-way on a Word document, via E-mail to be used on the Vacation 
Order.  This must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeding to City Council for final 
action.   

 
(2) Dedicate by separate instrument public street right-of-way for the relocated cul-de-sac.  The cul-de-sac radius 

will be per the Subdivision Regulations.  The original dedication must be provided to Planning prior to 
VAC2016-00004 proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Sedgwick 
County Register of Deeds.   
 

(3) Provide a plan for review and approval for the reconstruction of the cul-de-sac and any other required 
improvements, as required by Public Works and Traffic.  The approved private street project for the 
reconstruction of the cul-de-sac must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeding to City 
Council for final action. 
 

(4) Minnesota Street will remain open and in its current configuration until Minnesota Street is reconstructed, 
per the approved private street project.    
 

(5) Provide a covenant, with original signatures, binding and tying the described vacated public street eight-of-
way dedicated by separate instrument to the applicant’s abutting property. This must be provided to Planning 
prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeding to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the 
Vacation Order at the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds and the Sedgwick County Appraisers Office.   
 

(6) Dedicate easements by separate instruments to cover all utilities.  These original dedications must be provided 
to Planning prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording 
with the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.  An alternative would be to dedicate the vacated right-of-way 
as a utility – drainage easement that must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeds to City 
Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.  

 
(7) Provide utilities with any needed project plans for the relocation of utilities for review and approval.  Any 

relocation/reconstruction of utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to City Standards and shall be 
the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide an approved project number(s) to Planning 
prior to the case going to City Council for final action.  Becky Thompson is the Construction Services 
Representative for the Northeast area and can be contacted at 261-6320 for questions concerning Westar 
equipment.   

 
(8) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
(9) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 

or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
 

 

16



VAC2016-00004 – Request to vacate public street right-of-way dedicated by separate instrument 
May 19, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 

 
 

SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) As approved by the Traffic Engineer, vacate the described public street right-of-way.  Provide Planning with 
a legal description of the vacated right-of-way on a Word document, via E-mail to be used on the Vacation 
Order.  This must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeding to City Council for final 
action.   

 
(2) Dedicate by separate instrument public street right-of-way for the relocated cul-de-sac.  The cul-de-sac radius 

will be per the Subdivision Regulations.  The original dedication must be provided to Planning prior to 
VAC2016-00004 proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Sedgwick 
County Register of Deeds.   
 

(3) Provide a plan for review and approval for the reconstruction of the cul-de-sac and any other required 
improvements, as required by Public Works and Traffic.  The approved private street project for the 
reconstruction of the cul-de-sac must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeding to City 
Council for final action. 
 

(4) Minnesota Street will remain open and in its current configuration until Minnesota Street is reconstructed, 
per the approved private street project.    
 

(5) Provide a covenant, with original signatures, binding and tying the described vacated public street eight-of-
way dedicated by separate instrument to the applicant’s abutting property. This must be provided to Planning 
prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeding to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the 
Vacation Order at the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds and the Sedgwick County Appraisers Office.        
 

(6) Dedicate easements by separate instruments to cover all utilities.  These original dedications must be provided 
to Planning prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording 
with the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.  An alternative would be to dedicate the vacated right-of-way 
as a utility – drainage easement that must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00004 proceeds to City 
Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.  

 
(7) Provide utilities with any needed project plans for the relocation of utilities for review and approval.  Any 

relocation/reconstruction of utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to City Standards and shall be 
the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide an approved project number(s) to Planning 
prior to the case going to City Council for final action.  Becky Thompson is the Construction Services 
Representative for the Northeast area and can be contacted at 261-6320 for questions concerning Westar 
equipment.   

 
(8) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 

17



VAC2016-00004 – Request to vacate public street right-of-way dedicated by separate instrument 
May 19, 2016 
Page 5 
 
 

 
 

(9) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
 

 
 

18



  AGENDA ITEM NO.    3-2 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION May 19, 2016 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2016-00016 - Request to vacate a portion of platted Harry Drive public street 

right-of-way   
 
APPLICANT/AGENT: Steven J Martens & Michael R Martens (applicant/owner) Ruggles and Bohm,    

c/o Will Clevenger (agent)  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating the 50-foot wide portion of the platted Harry Drive 

that abuts Hornecker Drive on the west side, Lots 8-14, Block 2, Wheat Ridge 
Addition on its north side, ending at the west side Lot 7, Block 2, Wheat Ridge 
Addition on its east side and abuts Kellogg Avenue– US Highway US-54 on its south 
side, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas  

 
LOCATION: Generally located west of 119th Street West, on the north side of Kellogg Avenue 

– US-54 and east of Hornecker Drive (WCC IV) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Right-of-way will not be used for improvements of Kellogg Street – US-54    
 
CURRENT ZONING: All abutting and adjacent north, east and west properties are zoned GC General 

Commercial.  Kellogg Street – US-54 abuts the south side of the site.   
 
VICINITYMAP:  
 

 

19



VAC2016-00016 – Request to vacate a portion of platted public street right-of-way  
May 19, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

The applicants are requesting the vacation of the 50-foot wide portion of the unimproved, platted Harry Drive public 
street right-of-way (ROW) that abuts Hornecker Drive on the west side, Lots 8-14 (subject lots), Block 2, Wheatridge 
Addition on its north side, ending at the west side Lot 7, Block 2, Wheatridge Addition on its east side and abuts 
Kellogg Avenue– US Highway US-54 on its south side; a distance of approximately 759.33 feet.  VAC2005-00035 
vacated the eastern 320-foot long (x) 50-foot wide, portion of Harry Drive ROW that abuts the south sides of Lots 
7-6, and a southwest portion of Lot 5, all in Block 2, the Wheatridge Addition; approved December 13, 2005, by the 
Wichita City Council.  The combination of the the current vacation request and VAC2005-00035 appears to leave 
approximately 20 feet of Harry Drive.  The applicants will need to verify if this is a remnant or if the combination 
of the two noted vacation cases removes all of Harry Drive.  There is a platted 35-foot front setback on the subject 
lots that can be vacated with this case, although it was not requested.  The applicant has provided a cross lot access 
agreement between the subject lots that will provide access to Hornecker Drive, which appear to have access onto 
Kellogg Avenue – US-54.  The Wheatridge Addition plat has complete access control on the abutting Lots 5-14 onto 
Harry Drive, making the cross lot access agreement necessary; complete access control will be retained.  The public 
ROW Hornecker Drive provides access for the subject lots.  Harry Drive will not be used for improvements of 
Kellogg Street – US-54.   Public Works requires the dedication of a 50-foot (x) 50-foot triangle shaped drainage 
easement located at Harry Drive’s intersection with Hornecker Street.  There is existing Westar equipment in the 
area but condition # 8 will cover Westar.  Ennidh Garcia is the Construction Services Representative for the 
Southwest Area and can be contacted at 261-6320 for questions concerning this this vacation request.  The 
Wheatridge Addition was recorded with the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds on April 8, 1968.      
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from City Public Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the described portion of platted public street right-of-way. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time April 28, 2016, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described platted public street 
right-of-way and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated Harry Drive right-of-way on a Word document, via 
E-mail to be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00013 
proceeding to City Council for final action.   
 

(2) Vacate the platted 35-foot front yard setback located on and running parallel to the south property lines of 
Lots 8-14, Block 2, Wheatridge Addition.  The described vacated platted setback will be replaced with the 
GC General Commercial zoning district’s minimum 20-foot front yard setback.      

20



VAC2016-00016 – Request to vacate a portion of platted public street right-of-way  
May 19, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

 
(3) Verify that VAC2016-00016 and VAC2005-00035 have vacated all of Harry Drive.  

 
(4) Retain complete access control on the south property lines of Lots 8-14 (subject lots), Block 2, Wheatridge 

Addition.   
 

(5) An approved cross lot circulation agreement (with original signatures) for Lots 8-14, Block 2, Wheatridge 
Addition will be recorded with the Vacation Order at the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.     
 

(6) Provide a covenant, with original signatures, binding and tying the described vacated public street right-of-
way to the applicants’ abutting property. This must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00016 
proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the Sedgwick 
County Register of Deeds and the Sedgwick County Appraisers Office.  
 

(7) Dedicate a 50-foot (x) 50-foot drainage easement by separate instrument with original signatures.  The 
original dedication must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00016 proceeds to City Council for final 
action and subsequent recording, with the Vacation Order, at the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.  

 
(8) Westar has equipment in the area of the vacation activity.  Contact Ennidh Garcia, the Westar Construction 

Services Representative for the Southwest Area, at 261-6859 for questions/direction concerning Westar 
equipment located in the area of the vacation.  Any relocation/reconstruction of utilities made necessary by 
this vacation shall be to City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  
Provide an approved project number(s) or the permission to proceed from Westar to Planning prior to the 
case going to City Council for final action.   

 
(9) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense. 

 
(10) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 

or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 

 
(1) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated Harry Drive right-of-way on a Word document, via 

E-mail to be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00013 
proceeding to City Council for final action.   
 

(2) Vacate the platted 35-foot front yard setback located on and running parallel to the south property lines of 
Lots 8-14, Block 2, Wheatridge Addition.  The described vacated platted setback will be replaced with the 
GC General Commercial zoning district’s minimum 20-foot front yard setback.      
 

(3) Verify that VAC2016-00016 and VAC2005-00035 have vacated all of Harry Drive.  

21



VAC2016-00016 – Request to vacate a portion of platted public street right-of-way  
May 19, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 

 
 

 
(4) Retain complete access control on the south property lines of Lots 8-14 (subject lots), Block 2, Wheatridge 

Addition.   
 

(5) An approved cross lot circulation agreement (with original signatures) for Lots 8-14, Block 2, Wheatridge 
Addition will be recorded with the Vacation Order at the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.   
 

(6) Provide a covenant, with original signatures, binding and tying the described vacated public street right-of-
way to the applicants’ abutting property. This must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00016 
proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the Sedgwick 
County Register of Deeds and the Sedgwick County Appraisers Office.   
 

(7) Dedicate a 50-foot (x) 50-foot drainage easement by separate instrument with original signatures.  The 
original dedication must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00016 proceeds to City Council for final 
action and subsequent recording, with the Vacation Order, at the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.  

 
(8) Westar has equipment in the area of the vacation activity.  Contact Ennidh Garcia, the Westar Construction 

Services Representative for the Southwest Area, at 261-6859 for questions/direction concerning Westar 
equipment located in the area of the vacation.  Any relocation/reconstruction of utilities made necessary by 
this vacation shall be to City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  
Provide an approved project number(s) or the permission to proceed from Westar to Planning prior to the 
case going to City Council for final action.   

 
(9) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense. 

 
(10) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 

or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 

22



  AGENDA ITEM NO.    3-3 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION May 19, 2016 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2016-00017 - Request to vacate a portion of platted complete access control   
 
APPLICANT/AGENT: Slawson East, Inc. (applicant/owner) PEC, c/o Charlie Brown (agent) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating 40 feet of 433.7 feet of platted complete access 

control onto 21st Street North, located on the northwest property line of Lot 5, Block 
1, Cross Point 2nd Addition, Sedgwick County, Kansas. 

 
LOCATION: Generally located on the southwest side of 21st Street North and Kansas Highway 

K-96 (WCC #3) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: To allow a right-in – right-out drive   
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and the abutting and adjacent east, south and east properties are zoned LC 

Limited Commercial. The adjacent north properties are zoned SF-5 Single-Family 
Residential.   

 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



VAC2016-00017 – Request to vacate a portion of platted access control  
May 19, 2016  
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

The applicant proposes to vacate 40 feet of 433.7 feet of platted complete access control onto 21st Street North, 
located on the northwest property line of Lot 5, Block 1, Cross Pointe 2nd Addition (the subject site).  The applicant 
proposes a right-in – right-out drive onto 21st Street North.  21st Street North is a paved four-lane, two-way, arterial 
road at this location. The east end of a full curbed landscaped (grass) median strip lines up with the proposed vacated 
portion of platted complete access control.  To more fully ensure that the proposed drive is right-in – right-out it, the 
full curbed landscaped median strip may have to be extended further west.  Currently the subject site has access to 
21st Street North via the public street Crossmark Place by a 45-foot access easement abutting the south side of the 
subject site.  The abutting west property, Lot 10, Block 1, Cross Pointe Addition (recorded July 22, 2005), has direct 
access onto the public street Crossmark Place, which provides access to 21st Street North.   
 
The proposed drive would be located approximately 211 feet east of the public street Crossmark Place and 220 feet 
west of the 21st Street North – Kansas Highway K-96 interchange.  The current Access Management Regulations 
standard for a right-in – right-out drive is 200 feet between drives or arterial intersections and 400 feet between full 
movement drives or arterial intersections.   
 
There does not appear to be any public utilities located in the area of the vacation.  Westar has equipment in the 
vacation area but Westar has no objection to this request as condition # 3 will cover Westar.  Becky Thompson is 
the Construction Services Representative for the Northeast Area and can be contacted at 261-6320 for direction on 
this request.  The Cross Pointe 2nd Addition was recorded with the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds on January 
3, 2008.  
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from County Public Works, franchised utility representatives and other interested parties, 
Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited to) associated with the request to vacate the 
described portion of platted complete access control. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time April 28, 2016, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described platted complete access 
control and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Vacate that portion platted access control to allow one drive onto the sites’ 21st Street North frontage, as 
approved by Public Works - Traffic.  Provide Planning Staff with a legal description of the approved vacated 
portion of the platted access control on a Word document, via e-mail, to be used on the Vacation Order and 
Vacation Petition.  This must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to the City Council for final 
action.   

24



VAC2016-00017 – Request to vacate a portion of platted access control  
May 19, 2016  
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

(2) If necessary provide a plan for review and approval to extend the full curbed landscaped median strip further 
west.  If required provide Planning with a private project number of the approved plan.  This must be provided 
to Planning prior to the case going to the City Council for final action.      

 
(3) Any relocation or reconstruction of any utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility 

of the applicants and at the applicant’s expense.  Provide written approval from the utility companies prior 
to the case going to the City Council for final action.  Becky Thompson is the Westar Construction Services 
Representative for the Northeast Area and can be contacted at 261-6320 for direction on this request in 
regards to Westar equipment.   

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense, including all required 

plans, permits, inspections and the construction of the drive onto 21st Street North.   
 

(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 

(1) Vacate that portion platted access control to allow one drive onto the sites’ 21st Street North frontage, as 
approved by Public Works - Traffic.  Provide Planning Staff with a legal description of the approved vacated 
portion of the platted access control on a Word document, via e-mail, to be used on the Vacation Order and 
Vacation Petition.  This must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to the City Council for final 
action.   

(2) If necessary provide a plan for review and approval to extend the full curbed landscaped median strip further 
west.  If required provide Planning with a private project number of the approved plan.  This must be provided 
to Planning prior to the case going to the City Council for final action.      

 
(3) Any relocation or reconstruction of any utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility 

of the applicants and at the applicant’s expense.  Provide written approval from the utility companies prior 
to the case going to the City Council for final action.  Becky Thompson is the Westar Construction Services 
Representative for the Northeast Area and can be contacted at 261-6320 for direction on this request in 
regards to Westar equipment.   

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense, including all required 

plans, permits, inspections and the construction of the drive onto 21st Street North.   
 

(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67


	Agenda
	SUB2015-00047
	Shocker -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 47

	INFORMATIONAL ITEM:
	Informational Item -MAPC Memo2 

	VAC2016-00004
	VAC2016 04 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2016-00016
	VAC2016 16 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2016-00017
	VAC2016 17 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	ZON2015-00052 (Deferred from 2-4-16)
	ZON2015-00052 Staff Report, Minutes and DAB Memo

	ZON2016-00012 and CON2016-00007 (Deferred Indefinitely) - See Attached Letter
	ZON2016-000012 and CON2016-00007 Deferral Letter

	CON2016-00009 and ZON2016-00008
	ZON2016-00008 and CON2016-00009 Staff Report and Site Plan

	ZON2016-00018
	ZON2016-00018 Staff Report

	CUP2016-00015
	CUP2016-00015 Staff Report and CUP Drawing

	DER2016-00003 (The Final Draft Wichita, Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan Update 2016 has been sent U.S. Mail to each Planning Commissioner under separate cover.)
	DER2016-00003 Staff Memorandum


